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Doc. 39
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

MARIANA NELSON, on behalf of CASE NO. 13cv188-WQH-MDD
himself and all others similarly

situated, ORDER

Plaintiff,
VS.

STANDARD INSURANCE
COMPANY, an Oregon comEany;
COUNTRYWIDE FINANCIA
CORPORATION GROUP LONG
TERM DISABILITY PLAN;
COUNTRYWIDE FINANAICAL
CORP., and DOES 1-50, inclusive,

Defendants

HAYES, Judge:

The matter before the Court is the Mwtito Dismiss Plaintiff's First Amende
Complaint (“Motion to Dismiss”), fild by all Defendants. (ECF No. 34).
l. Background

On January 23, 2013, Plaintiff Mariahklson initiated this action by filing
Complaint in this Court. (ECF No. 1).

A.  Allegations of the Complaint

Beginning in January 2004, Plaintitas employed as a loan officer w
Defendant Countrywide Financial Corpd. 1 1, 5. Plaintiff received long ter
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disability coverage under the CountrywiBmancial Corporation Group Long Tefm

Disability Plan, policy number 643382 (“Group Policy”), issued by Defendant Sta
Insurance Company (“Standard’ld. {1 1, 6. The Group Policy provides:
DISABILITIES SUBJECT TO LIMITED PAY PERIODS
A. Mental Disorders, Substance Abuse, and Other Limited Conditions.

Payment of [long term disabilifi. TD’)] Benefits is limited to 24
months during your entire lifetime for a Disability caused or contributed
to by any one or more of the follomg, or medical or surgical treatment
of ohe or more of the following:

1. Mental Disorders;
2. Substance Abuse; or
3. Other Limited Conditions. ...

Mental Disorder means any mental, emotional, behavioral,
psychological, personality, cognitive, mood, or stress-related abnormality,
disorder, “disturbance, dysfunctiar syndrome, regardless of cause
gnc_ludlng{ any biological or biochewal disorder or imbalance of the

rain) or the presence of physicahgytoms. Mental Disorder includes,
but is not limited to, bl?_ol_ar affective disorder, organic brain syndrome,
schizophrenia, psychotic illness, madepressive illngs, depression and
depressive disorders, anxiety and anxiety disorders. ...

Other Limited Conditions meai&ronic fatigue conditions..., any
aIIerdq%/_ or sensitivity to chemicalsr the environment..., chronic pain
conditions..., carpal tunnel orrepetitive motion syndrome,
temporomandibular joint disorder, or craniomandibular joint disorder.

Id. 7 8.

In April 2007, Plaintiff ceased working due to disabilitd. § 9. Standard dog

not dispute Plaintiff's disability under the Group Policid. On May 30, 2008
Plaintiff submitted a claim seeking long term disability benefits going back to

2007. I1d. T 10. On July 10, 2008, Standactepted the claim and paid Plainii

disability benefits.ld. § 11.

In January 2010, Standard informed Ridi that “LTD benefits have bee
terminated as of December 31, 2009 because [Plaintifff no longer satisfi
Definition of Disability as sta&td in the Group Coverageld.  12. Plaintiff requeste
that Standard review the termination of benefit. § 14. On November 18, 201
Plaintiff sent Standard a letter informing8tlard that “she disagreed that her inab
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to work stemmed from mental iliness, but eifendid, Standard’s practice of limitin
her coverage to two years dteemental illness was disminatory and contrary fg
California law.” Id. § 17.

On October 10, 2011, Standasdued its final decision, denying Plaintiff's lo
term disability claim after its administrative review unit evaluated the Decemb
2009 decision to close the claind. § 32. The basis of Standard’s final denial \

solely because “[tlhe group policy limitsatipayment of LTD benefits to a maximt

of 24 months, during your entire lifetime rfoertain conditions...” and “[Plaintiff]'$
diagnosis of Major Depression is considei@tle a Mental Disorder and is subject

the 24 month maximum benefit period limitation.ld. Standard concludef
“[tlherefore, after 24 months we cannot consider [Plaintiff’'s] Major Depressic
another mental disorder or another ited condition when determining wheth
[Plaintiff] is disabled, even if her Majdepression or other limited condition is s
disabling.” 1d.

In the original Complaint, Plaintiff asded the following causes of action: (
Claim for Benefits pursuant to 29 U.S.&€.1132(a)(1)(B); (2) Claim for Equitab
Relief pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 1132(a)(3);B8ach of Fiduciary Duty pursuant to
U.S.C. 88 1104(a)(1), 1132(a)(3); and (4) Deatlary Relief. Each of Plaintiff's fou
claims in the original Qmplaint arose from her contention that the Group Poli
provision entitled, “Disabilities Subject tamited Pay Periods,” is unenforceal
because Standard has not complied @#lifornia Insurance Code section 1014ee
ECF No. 1 1 53, 59, 67, 73. Plaintifolmght the action on behaidf herself and 3
putative class consisting of all Californisgsigents who are participants in a group p

! Section 10144 provides: o o

No insurer issuing, providing, or admstering any contract of individual

or group insurance providing ... disabilitgnetits ... shall refuse to insure,

or refuse to continue to insure, or limit the amount, extent, or kind of

coverage available to amdividual, or charge a tferent rate for the same

coverage solely because of a pf%smahental impairment, except where

the refusal, limitation or rate fierential is based on sound actuarial

principles or is related to actuahd reasonably anticipated experience.
Cal. Ins. Code § 10144.
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administered by Standard which contairessame “Disabilities Subject to Limited P
Periods” provision as the one in the Group Polild.§ 33.

B.  Order on Motion to Dismiss

On July 17, 2013, the Court issued an order granting Defendants’ Mot
Dismiss the original Complaint. (ECF NzB). The Court found that Plaintiff failed
state a claim upon which relief may be demhbecause the Complaint “lack[ed

cognizable legal theory.Balistreri v. Pacifica Police Dep/t901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th

Cir. 1990). The Court stated:

T]he reasoning oMonterastelli v. Standard Ins. CiNo. CV 12-1669
AGRXx), 2012 WL 8679843 (C.D. Calune 12, 2012)] anbwnsend v.
homson Reuters Group Disability Income Ins. vV F. Supp. 2d
1085 (C.D. Cal. 2012)] Hs] persuasSive. As the Court of Appeals for the
Ninth Circuit stated in"the contegf a challenge to a similar disability
Rollcy provision under the Americansgtiv Disabilities Act, ‘[ijnsurers
ave historically and consistently dedistinctions between mental and
[Ia_hy5|c_al iliness in offerlnlg healtAnd disability coverage.’'Weyer v.
wentieth Centug Fox Film Corpl98 F.3d 1104, 1116_%9th Cir. 2000)
g]quotatlon omitted). ‘[H]ad Congresgended to contiavhich coverages
ad to be offered by emPoners,wDuId have spoken more plainly
because of the well-established netnkg process to the contraryld. |
Accepting all facts a_IIe%ed_m the Complaint as true, the Group Policy’s
provision entitled, ‘Disabilities Subjett Limited Pay Periods,” does not
violate California Insurance Code § 10144.

(ECF No. 23 at 9). The Court dismisgshd original Complaint without prejudice.

C. First Amended Complaint

On October 31, 2013, Plaintiff filethe First Amended Complaint (“FAC”
which alleges five claims. (ECF No. 3Qlaims 1-4 of the F& re-alleges the theot
underlying Claims 1-4 of the original Complaint that the Group Policy vio
California Insurance Code § 10144. Claim 5 alleges an individual claim for be
under 29 U.S.C. § 1132(a)(1)(B), “without regard to the potential applicability ¢
provisions of California Insurance Code Section 10144.” (ECF No. 31 1 97).
5 alleges that the “proximate cause of imability to work, is in fact, some form ¢

Physical Disease or Injury and not any fafhiMental lliness odepression, as defing

by the Group Policy.”ld. § 101. Claim 5 alleges:

Defendant repeatedly discounted thbjective and documented evidence
of physical injury, condition, or disease as causes of Plaintiff's inability
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to work and unreasonably attributed Plaintiff’'s mental impairments as the
cause of her disability in order to mly the limitation of coverage for two
%/ears. Defendant failed to accept tiverwhelming evidence that, but for
the various sleep disorders, theis no evidence that any mental
impairment or illness would prevent Plaintiff from working.

Id. {1 114. Claims 1-4 of the FAC are broughbethalf of Plaintiff and a putative clag
Claim 5 is brought on behalf of Plaintiff only.
D.  Motion to Dismiss

On November 18, 2013, Defendants filed liotion to Dismiss Plaintiff's FAC|.

(ECF No. 34). Defendants contend:

Nelson’s entire Amended Complaiigtfounded on an interpretation of
810144 that is not legally viable andstizeen rejected by everP/ court that
has addressed the issué. Nelson failstate individual and class action
claims for payment of benefitsnder 29 U.S.C. §_1132(a)(1)&%), and for
breach of f|du0|a9/ duty and edlarator?/ relief under 29 U.S.C.

81132(a)(3), based on_her Ie(%ally_ emdble insurance discrimination

thepré/, warranting dismissal of tieatire First Amended Complaint with

prejudice.

(ECF No. 34-1 at 17). Defenats request an award of attey’s fees pursuant to 2
U.S.C. 8§ 1132(g).

On December 9, 2013, Plaintiff filed an opposition to the Motion to Disr
(ECF No. 35). As to Claims 1-4, Plaifiittontends that the FAC pleads a violation

California Insurance Code 8 10144s to Claim 5, Plaitiff contends: “Defendants do

not state any basis for dismissing the fifth count. [Plaintiff] pleads facts alleg

wrongful denial of coverage. [Plaiffts] claim is not dependent on Defendants

violation of Section 10144 to succeed.” (ECF No. 35 at 29).
On December 17, 2013, Defendants fiedeply in support of the Motion {
Dismiss. (ECF No. 38).
[I.  Standard of Review
Federal Rule of Civil Procire 12(b)(6) permits dismissal for “failure to st
a claim upon which relief can lgganted.” Fed. R. Civ. B2(b)(6). Federal Rule ¢
Civil Procedure 8(a) provides that “[a]galding that states a claim for relief m
contain ... a short and plain statement ef¢laim showing that the pleader is entit
to relief.” Fed. R. Civ. R(a)(2). Dismissal under Rul2(b)(6) is appropriate whe
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the complaint lacks a cognizable legal themrgufficient facts to support a cogniza

legal theory.See Balistreri v. Pacifica Police Depd01 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cir. 1990).

A plaintiff's “grounds” to relief must comin “more than labels and conclusio
and a formulaic recitation of the elentgiof a cause of action will not doBell Atl.
Corp. v. Twombly550 U.S. 544, 555 (2007quoting Fed. R. CivP. 8(a)(2)). Wher
considering a motion to dismiss, a courtstnaiccept as true all “well-pleaded fact
allegations.” Ashcroft v. Igbgl 556 U.S. 662, 679 (2009). However, a court is
“required to accept as true allegatiott are merely conclusory, unwarran
deductions of fact, or unreasonable inferenc8prewell v. Golden State Warrig66
F.3d 979, 988 (9th Cir. 2001). “In sum, for a complaint to survive a motion to dis
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the non-conclusory factual content, and oe@ble inferences from that content, must

be plausibly suggestive of a claantitling the plaintiff to relief.”Moss v. U.S. Secr¢
Service 572 F.3d 962, 969 (9th Cir. 2009) (quotations omitted).
[ll. Discussion

A. Claims 1-4

Pt

Claims 1-4 of the FAC allege claims tleae materially the same as the claims

alleged in the original Complaint. To taetent the FAC contains new allegations that

Defendants charged a “higheffective premium rate” (ECF No. 31 11 36, 46),
Court finds that the FAC fails to plabty allege that Deendants’ charged *
discriminatory premium that ... would run afoul of section 1014€h&bner v. Unitec

of Omaha Life Ins. Cp225 F.3d 1042, 1048 (9th Cir. 200Bor the reasons stated]i
the Court’'s July 17, 2013 Order, the Mwtito Dismiss Claims 1-4 of the FAC|i

granted.SeeECF No. 23.

B. Clam5

Claim 5 of the FAC expressly alleges a claim “without regard to the pot
applicability of the provisions of Califoraiinsurance Code Section 10144.” (ECF
31 1 97). Defendants have fail®o assert any appropridiasis for dismissing Clair
5 of the FAC. The Motion to Dismiss Claim 5 is denied.
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C. Attorney’s Fees

Defendants request attorney’s feesspiant to 29 U.S.C. 8§ 1132(g). Sect
1132(g) provides that a “court in its disto® may allow a reasonable attorney’s
and costs of action to either party.” 29 U.S.C. § 1132(g)(1). “In general, a
considering whether to award attorneyss$ and costs under ERISA must consider
factors: (1) the degree of the opposing partyllpability or bad faith; (2) the ability (
the opposing party to satisfy an award of fees; (3) whether an award of fees wou
others from breaching duties under similar circumstances; (4) whether the
requesting fees sought to bahefi participants and benefaries of an ERISA plan @
to resolve a significant legal question netiag ERISA; and (5) the relative merits
the parties’ positions.Cal. Ironworkers Field Pension Trust v. Loomis Sayles &
259 F.3d 1036, 1048 (9th Cir. 20(tjtations omitted). Afteconsidering the relevat
factors, the Court declines to amd attorney’s fees to Defendants.
IV. Conclusion

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Motion to Dismiss Claims 1-4 of the R

is GRANTED, and the Motion to Dismiss Qiab of the FAC is DENIED. (ECF No.

34).
DATED: February 20, 2014

B it 2. ,@,4,
WILLIAM Q. HAYES
United States District Judge
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